AVALON BOROUGH
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
JULY 19, 2011

The meeting was opened by acting President, Pat Narcisi, with a prayer
and the pledge of allegiance led by Vickie Donnéelly.

Roll Call: Bernstein, Cortese, Dixon, Donnelly, Narcisi, Powell. Also
present were Dilmore, Solicitor Megan Ott, Shawn Rosensteel, Police
Chief Kokoski, Tax Collector, Ed Klicker and Judith Brogan. Absent:
L loyd, Repp, Sefick, and Mayor Hadlett.

No Executive Session was held prior to the Regular Council M eeting.

Cortese moved “to approve the Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting
of June 21, 2011.”

Powell seconded

CARRIED

COMMUNICATIONS:

e Dilmore stated that hereceived the contract and agreement papers
from AIM on theroof loan. AIM thoughtswer e discussed at the
Finance meeting and are on the table for tonight’s meeting.

o Letter from Penn State University and Engaging Pittsburgh
Group asking Avalon Borough to join Bellevue and Ben Avon with
the Tri Boros Zoning Commission to form a Shade Tree
Commission. Thisison thetableto be discussed tonight.

e Letter from the Northgate Quarterback Club regarding an ad for
the 2011 program.

e Letter from the Solicitor on a property reassessment and guidance
on her method of procedures.



VISITORS:

Denise Schmidt, owner of 609 N. Birmingham Avenue stated that she
cameto her first Council meeting about a year ago to discussthe
horrible condition of the Norwood Avenue steps. She hasbeen to a few
Council meetings since then, but has not been given an answer asto why
the stepsarenot repaired. She stated that she spoke with Harry
Dilmorein early spring and hetold hethat shedidn’t get any answer
because she has not been to a Council meeting. She stated that sheis
not awar e that you must attend a Council meeting in order to get things
accomplished in the Bor ough.

She stated that shewastold that the contract to repair the steps had
been cancelled and she demanded to know why. She also wantsto know
when the work will be done.

Sheisunabletorent her building because the steps are a hazard and
potential rentersare not interested because of the steps and therisk that
emer gency vehicles cannot accessthe property.

She stated that she asked Harry Dilmoreif she hasto attend the Council
meetingsto get things done and he stated “no, you don’t have to do
that.” But at the next Council meeting the contract was disintegrated.

Shethen stated that Harry Dilmoretold her via email told her that the
Department of Public Workswas going to repair the steps.

She stated that last winter aresident used therail and fell and dropped
her child. (no seriousinjuries) Theonly work done on the steps, which
are Borough Property, was to have the DPW shore up therailing. Her
guestion is“Why was the contract cancelled? What does Avalon
Borough intend to do with “their” property that is a safety hazard and
in definite need of repair and has been at the attention of the Bor ough
since at least 20067

Dixon asked her do you havethisproperty up for rent and are making
money on it? She stated that she cannot rent it because of the steps.

Dixon asked if renting the property wastheidea of buying it and she
stated that it was not. She stated that she bought the property in order

2



to have a home she could afford on her income and shelived ther e until
four (4) yearsago when she got married.

Dixon stated that his point isthat the Borough property allows her
accessto her property so she can collect therent on it. She disagreed;
saying that the Bor ough agreed that the walkway and steps arethe only
accessto the property and needsto berepaired. She stated that if she
had a sidewalk that needed to berepaired, shewould be fined if it
wasn’t done and she wantsthe Borough to do their share.

She complained about the Borough making her have rental inspections
and sheis alwayswithin the safety codes and now she cannot sell or rent
her property.

Donnelly stated that she believesthat the owner of a property should be
responsible for providing accessto their property or perhaps
eliminating the steps altogether. Therewas some argumentative
discussion and Ms. Schmidt stated that shewastold “ many, many
things about this problem and none of them aretrue.”

Narcis stated that the contract was cancelled because the Borough
doesn’t have the money at thistimeto pay for the work.

Narcis stated that the Borough wantsto repair the steps but islimited
by the lack of funds. After further argument from Ms. Schmidt, Narcis
stated that no oneisout to get her. Ms. Schmidt stated asked why sheis
held to a higher standard than the Borough when it comesto property
repair and upkeep. She argued further and Narcisi again stated that
they aretrying to address her problem and she asked why it hastaken
so long — since 2006 —to get this done.

Ms. Schmidt asked why she hasto pay a garbage bill if sheisshort of
funds but the Borough is not held to the same standard.

After further argument between Donnelly and Ms. Schmidt, Narcis
took control of the meeting, stating that the Borough isnow held to
higher standards by the state. There are new lawsthat govern how the
repairs and replacements areto be done. He asked her to be patient.
The Borough will make the necessary repairsand she asked “when?”
Narcis stated that he could not give her a definite date and she asked if

3



she hasto cometo all of the Council meetingsto find out when thiswill
be done. Narcis stated that she does not need to do that but she argued
and stated that Dilmoretold her (to her face when she was paying her
trash bill) that she hasto attend the meetingsto get things done.

Narcis stated that although it isnot mandatory for her to attend the
meetings, it isthe best way to make sure her voiceisheard.

Ms. Schmidt stated that Council istelling her that the problem isbeing
wor ked on and she wantsto know what isbeing done. Donnelly stated
that the cost is so high to repair the steps because of the new laws.

Dilmor e stated that the cost to replace the stepsis $100,000 and he has
applied for grantsthreetimes. The problem isthat thereislimited
access from the people on the hill. Ms. Schmidt asked if hetried doing a
survey when theresidents are home so he can get an accur ate account of
how many people would benefit by theserepairs.

Dilmor e stated that he does not make the rules and the grants are based
on things he has no control over.

Dilmor e stated that the $10,000 would only fix the section from thetop
of Norwood to just below her house.

Ms. Schmidt asked why the Borough is not doing the snow removal and
Dilmor e stated ther e was a miscommunication and he has corrected it.

She stated that there are over grown weeds growing over to her property
and the Borough is supposed to take care of that too and they are not.
She has sprayed the weeds but it isnot her responsibility to take care of
Borough property. When wasthelast time the Crew cut thegrass
there?

Bernstein stated that there will be no decision made regarding her
concernsat thismeeting. He stated that “there are committee meetings
she can attend and if you have misinformed previousto this point, |
apologizetoyou.” The Committeesthat exist areall public meetings
and thereisastreet Committee and that who originally informed
Council of the problem. Ms. Schmidt argued that was incorrect but
Bernstein again stated that it wasthe Street Committee that started the

4



process and made Council aware of the problem. He stated that he can
appreciate her concerns about the other issues sheraised, especially her
communicationswith Harry, and any other issues she may have and his
suggestion isto revisit theseissues at the proper Committees. He stated
that she can get a calendar of the meetings at the Administrative office.

He stated that the Committees will work together to address her
concerns,

Cortese stated that she does not have to attend any meetings. Theonly
reason the steps are not doneis because the Borough ran out of money.
The only thing left to do isto get Rob Powell, who chairsthe Finance
Committeeto find the money and the stepswill get done. Weareaware
of the problem and until we get the money, nothing can be done. When
they get the money, Cortese stated that he will put the motion on the
floor to get thework done.

Powell thanked Cortese for putting it on him but he promised to look
into wherethey can get themoney. If hefindsthe money, hewill let
Cortese know when he can put the motion on the floor.

Jackie Yurkovich of 649 Grandview Avenue thanked Ralph Cortese for
getting umbrellasfor the concession stand. She stated that this has
made it more comfortable for everyone and with new families coming to
the pool, theumbrellas arereally appreciated.

She also reminded Council about the two streetsthat are going to be
closed for the two block parties.

Dilmor e stated that everythingisin placefor thisand the Borough
Crew will drop off the wooden hor ses.

Jackie asked about the electric company that spoke at the meeting a few
months ago that offered lower rates. Shewould like infor mation from
this company to compareit to other offerssheisreceiving.

Bernstein will get the information to her as soon as possible.

Dixon reminded her that the company sheisasking about isa Broker
and not an electric company, stating thereisa difference.

5



Dilmor e stated that the Borough has been using this company and there
Isa significant savings although it has only been a few months.

Jeffrey Marous, 320 California Avenue asked about the streets that
Columbia Gastore up and heisglad to seethat the gas company has
started thework but they left some ar eas unfinished.

Dilmor e stated that the gas company actually paved mor e than was
agreed upon and Marous asked who will do therest of the work.
Dilmor e stated that the gas company isnot done yet and therest of the
work will be done as soon as the gas company’swork is completed.
Moruse stated there are large holes that need to berepaired before
winter. Dilmore stated that it will be done when the gas company
completesther work.

MAYOR:
NO REPORT

SECRETARY/MANAGER:

e Shawn Rosensted will give hisreport on the West Bellevue Road
Project tonight.

e Dilmorehad theinterview for the AIM loan for ht roof at thefire
house. The paper work isready and a motion is scheduled for
tonight’s meeting to approve the loan application.

e Council may need to meet with the Committee for the Teamsters
negotiations. Letter was sent to the Teamsterswith the
negotiating team member’s names and the dates Council
suggested. Council should meet before the negotiations because
there are optionsto be consider ed and the old contract should be
studied. Thisshould be done before the second week of August.

Narcis asked who ison the Committee and Dilmor e stated that the
membersare Narcig, Lloyd, Powell and Repp.



SOLICITOR:

Megan Ott stated that shereviewed the car Ordinance for Avalon
Borough and compared it to the Pennsylvania Motor Vehicle Code.
There aretwo optionsin which the Borough can pursue action against
violators. Thefirst isthe Borough Ordinance. It coversthenuisance
law and she made recommendations which should answer any questions
Council may have. The second option isthe Pennsylvania M otor
Vehicle Code which allowsthe police to take action. Thiswould involve
giving notice to steps that would allow the police to take action.

Cortese stated “we all know what thisis after - if a business can take
their own carsand park them in front of aresident’shouse. We know
thisisa businessdoing this...does that mean we havetogotoa
resident’s house and citethem instead of towing it (the car) away?”

Megan stated thereisa zoning violation and the officer can send a
noticetelling the owner that therewill be a fineif the car isnot moved
within a certain amount of time. The second option isthe Ordinance
which coversthe nuisance law as stated and thethird option isthe
Pennsylvania Motor Vehicle Code which allowsthe police to go after the
owner of thevehicle. Sherecommends using all three options.

Powell asked if putting a written notice on the windshield of the vehicle
would bewithin their options and M egan stated that it would be within
the Motor Vehicle Code.

Police Chief Kokoski stated that thereisan officer that knowsthislaw
thoroughly. Kokoski stated that his officer told him that you cannot
tow a car without written notice because that is seizing someone’s
property. The vehicle may be moved in the case of an emergency.

The police must give a ten (10) day notice and wait for areply. If they
don’t reply, you must send a certified letter and wait for areply. Then
a letter must be sent to Penn Dot and wait for areply.

Kokoski stated that thereisno Ordinance that can changethe state law
and the steps he laid out are state law requirements.



Megan stated that she thinksit isworth sending a letter first and then
go from there. It may servethe purpose and beall that isneeded. The
Borough can certainly follow up with the other optionsif needed.

Donnelly asked if the owner of the cited vehiclewould havetogotoa
local district court or do they haveto go the state.

Donnelly stated that taking the owner to thelocal court could help
becauseif the car isnot properly insured or if the owner doesn’t have a
license or if the car isin poor condition, the magistrate could tell them
to get rid of thecar.

K okoski stated that he has one officer that isdesignated to thejob of
ticketing and following through with theviolators, but the problem does
not them to takeimmediate action if the state law requires otherwise.

Megan stated that she has been looking into various Library “ stuff” for
the Borough.

She also has been working with Harry Dilmor e concer ning the
commercial status and the increased tax assessment for the M etowers.

Sheisalso looking into the Kersting litigation and will report to Harry.

ENGINEERS REPORT:

Shawn Rosensted reported on the West Bellevue Road Project stating
that therewas a delay in getting the equipment on site but he has been
assured that the equipment will be there within the next two weeks and
the project will still be within the time frame as per the contract.

FINANCE:
Powell moved:
“to approve Ordinance No. 1333 for the 1% and 2" reading, increasing

theindebtedness of Avalon Borough in the amount of $70,000 with the
Allegheny County Authority For | mprovements|n Municipalities.”



Dilmoreread:

“AN ORDINANCE INCREASING THE INDEBTEDNESS OF
AVALON BOROUGH, COUNTY OF ALLEGHENY,
PENNSYLVANIA, THE ISSUE OF A GENERAL
OBLIGATION NOTE IN THE AMOUNT OF $70,000.00 FOR
THE REPLACEMENT OF THE MUNICIPAL BUILDING
GARAGE ROOF; FIXING THE FORM, NUMBER, DATE,
INTEREST AND MATURITY THEREOF: MAKING A
COVENANT FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE DEBT SERIVVCE
OF THE NOTE; PROVIDING FOR THE FILING OF THE
REQUIRED DOCUMENTS, PROVIDING FOR THE
APPOINTMENT OF A SINKING FUND DEPOSITORY FOR
THE NOTE, AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION, SALE
AND DELIVERY THEREOF.

Powell moved “to have the Secretary pay off the Tan L oan when the
fundsareappropriately transferred.”

CARRIED

“To accept the Finance Report as submitted.”

CARRIED
Donnelly 2™

“Toaccept the Treasurer’s Report of June 21, 2011 as submitted.”

CARRIED
Donnelly 2™

“To accept the Tax Collector’s Report dated May 27, 2011 as
submitted.”

Donnelly 2™

CARRIED



“To pay theList of Billsas submitted.”

CARRIED
Donnelly 2™

Dixon asked why the Borough paid $425.00 to E& R Automotive to fix
thewindow on a DPW truck. Why didn’t the DPW go to thejunk yard
and buy a window and fix it themselves.

Also, “why arewe (the Borough) giving thisguy any business at all
when we aretrying to get him to comply with the cars and stuff and
why are we still sticking money into the DPW truck when they don’t
even need thistruck.”

And, why do we need a skid steer at a cost of $1500.00 when we have
accessto the gas company equipment.

Dilmor e stated that he did not approve any repairson thetruck for the
DPW but the crew saw a need and took care of it. Dixon stated that he
hasatruck and if it needsrepaired he goesto thejunk yard and fixesit
himself and the crew should do the same.

Dilmor e asked if Dixon does not want the Bor ough taking any of the
vehiclesto E& R Automotive and Dixon stated that if we are hurting for
money why give them any business. We should be doing it our selves.

Donnelly asked if it is possible to turn the damage over to theinsurance
company and Dilmor e stated that in most cases, the deductableismore
than therepairs.

Donnelly asked Dixon how much the scrubber for thefire hall cost and
Dixon stated that Council approved it monthsago and it still isn’t paid
for or received.

Dilmor e stated that the check was mailed on June 20" and cashed on

June 23", He suggested that Dixon ask at thefire hall to seeif they got
the scrubber.

10



Dixon asked Donnelly how the cost of the scrubber has any effect on his
question. A heated argument ensued and Narcis called the meeting to
order, telling Council membersto allow each other to speak and to be
civil to each other.

Narcis stated that hereceived a call from thefire chief, Bill Carney,
and hetold Narcis that the scrubber isin and at thefire hall.

Narcis asked for a vote on Powell’s motion to pay thelist of bills. The
motion was...

CARRIED

Powell moved “to exoneratethe Tax Collector, Ed Klicker, from
collecting any and all ear ned income taxes and directing him to turn
over any and all monies already collected for said taxesto Keystone
Collections, effective July 22, 2011.

CARRIED

Cortese asked why we are giving Keystonethe money if itisours. If Ed
collected it why turn it over to Keystone.

Klicker explained that thiswas already discussed in June and possibly
in July with Council. Therehasto bea cut off date where he no longer
accepts paymentsfor past years. If theresidents continueto send
paymentsto his office, hewill send them to Keystone for posting.

Klicker stated that he will continue to work on the wage tax thru
September.

Cortesethanked him for explaining it.

Dixon asked if wewent with Keystone earlier than required so there
would be moretimeto dowhat heisdoing now. Klicker stated that is
correct. He stated that the Borough has been receiving money from his
office and from Keystone since January. There have been some bumps
in theroad but we havetimetowork it out.

11



Narcis asked if there are any more questions on this motion at which
time the motion was voted on and...

CARRIED

Powell moved “to accept Resolution No. 1076 authorizing the execution
of a note pursuant to Ordinance No. 1033.”

Donnelly 2™
Dixon asked Dilmor e about the plumbing problem at the fire hall and
Dilmor e stated that Bauer Plumbing isworking on thelinethey were
having troublewith and then the roof would be done. He stated that the
floor seemed moreimportant at thistime but the roof would also be
done.
Dixon asked about the $70,000 being used for the drainage problem and
Dilmor e stated that the money has not been recelved yet but the
problem will be solved.

Donnelly asked if there should bearall call vote and wastold that is not
necessary for a Resolution.

Narcis called for a vote and the motion was...
CARRIED

SAFETY:

NO REPORT

STREETS:

NO REPORT

PROPERTY:

NO REPORT

12



HEALTH:

Dixon reported that the County is giving free smoke alarms for home
ownerswho livein thehome. If you have alarmsthat areten (10) years
old or morethey will replacethem and install them. You must call the
County for mor e information and to schedule an appointment.

Dixon stated that he has some questions on a bill from Chester
Engineering concer ning work that was completed in 2010. First, he
wants to know who Jessica Antel is, second, thisisfor work that was
doneon July 27, 2010 and faxed from somewhere to State Pipeon
March 8, 2011 and again to Chester Engineering on or about March 15,
2011 who then sent it to Harry Dilmore stating that State Pipeis
requesting payment.

Dixon asked why this bill has not been paid or isit wrapped up with the
West Bellevue Road Project that isgoing on now?

Dilmor e stated that it iswrapped up with the current work being done,
and when the wor k was completed, State Pipe submitted thebill to
Chester Engineering instead of Avalon Borough and Jessica Antel isthe
Engineer at Chester Engineering who was in charge of that project.

The bill Dixon hasin front of him to sign isAvalon’s share and will be
paid when the project iscomplete.

CORP/PLANNING:

Bernstein moved to appoint Tom Demongoneto a three (3) year term as
chair with thevice chair to remain open, Rae Fisher to a one (1) year
term and Bernstein to a 2 year term.

Donnelly 2™

Cortese asked what they plan to do with the chair peoplethat were
appointed in 2009. Bernstein stated that thereweren’t any members
appointed to the Executive Board of the Friends of the Library.

Cortese stated there were member s appointed and stressed that he
wor ked with those membersto obtain the 501-C from the state.

13



Bernstein again stated that heis unawar e of thisand Megan Ott
suggested that the motion should be tabled until further information
can be obtained and the chair members appointment can be worked
out.

Bernstein moved to table his motion until the Solicitor and Bernstein
can look into the matter.

Donnelly 2™

Donnelly suggested asking the current board membersto resign so new
board member s can be appointed.

Narcis stated that it isalready table pending resear ch by the Solicitor
and Bernstein.

Bernstein thanked Connie Rankin and Ed Klicker for a spectacular
celebration for the 4™ of July. Their hard work was enjoyed by many
people thisyear.

Bernstein stated that the L ocal Government Academy held a meeting at
the Borough Hall at which hewas a speaker. Thetopic was Social
Media Practices. He stated that the Facebook page he has posted is
growing and they currently have 12,000 viewings.

He stated that one good thing that came out of the meeting wasto
recognize the need to have good policy and language practices.

INTER-BORO:

Donnelly stated she hasa QVCOG meeting coming up on Wednesday.
Shewill report back to Council in August. They also discussed the DB-
37 update but thereis nothing definite at thistime.

Donnelly moved “to participate in a multi-media shade tree commission
with Bellevue-Ben Avon to promote the green infrastructure and give
efficient use of resourcesin our communities.”

Powel| 2™

14



Dixon asked how much it isgoing to cost the Borough. Therewasa
heated argument and Narcis took control of the meeting and asked
Donnelly to explain her motion.

Donnelly stated that in order to get funding for the greenery, a
commission must be formed. She asked Dilmoreto explain what he
knows of this plan.

Dilmor e stated that Avalon had a Shade Tree Commission in the past
but no onewanted to serveon it. It seemsnow that the County has sent
lettersto the three communities asking them to participate. At this
point that isall he knows about it.

Narcis asked for a vote and the motion was...

CARRIED
(POWELL AND DIXON VOTED NO)

Donnelly stated that the Quaker Valley Council of Governmentsis till
wor king on the Garbage contract and a report will be given at the
August meeting.

PARKS:

Cortese moved “to place an ad in the 2011 Northgate Football Program
at a cost of $45.00.”

Donnelly asked if Council wasgoingto“chip in” asin past yearsand
Cortese stated that would be acceptable.

Dixon asked what it isfor and Cortese stated that it isa fund raiser for
thefootball team to help defray ther costs.

Donnelly stated that she paid for the ad last year but thisyear it would
be good if Council each paid $5.00 to pay for it.

Dixon asked if she asked for a rembursement and she stated she did
not.

15



Cortese stated that he will withdraw the motion since Council isgoing to
contribute $5.00 each to pay for the ad.

Cortese withdrew the motion.

Cortese moved “to allow the Avalon Panthersusethefield for the
season with a $1,500 security deposit which has already been paid. Use
of thefield will be contingent upon proof of thelr insurance.”

Donnelly 2™

Yurkovich asked if therewill be a no smoking rulefor children’s events.
Dilmor e and Cortese agreed thiswill be enforced.

Narcis called for a vote and the motion was...
CARRIED

Cortese announced that the Monday night swimsasdoingwell. The
cost is $2.00 and you can swim from 8:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m.

Morning swims are also doingwell. They are on Tuesday and Thur sday
mornings from 8:00 a.m. to 10:00 a.m. and ar e $2.00.

Movie night ison Thursday evenings. Thisweek we have a “kids flick”
and hot chocolate will be available.

L IBRARY:
NO REPORT
AN JULY:

NO REPORT

16



Powell moved:

“Toadjourn.”

Cortese 2™

CARRIED

Respectfully submitted

Harry W. Dilmore
M anager

17



